
- over - 

AGENDA FOR 

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

 

July 10, 2018 
 

CALENDAR 
 

Jul 10 5:30 p.m. Executive Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Jul 10 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Jul 10 
immediately 

following 
Executive Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Jul 17 7:00 a.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Jul 24 5:30 p.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Jul 24 
immediately 

following 
Executive Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Jul 24 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

 

******************* 
A. CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE 

 

B. THE ELKHART PROMISE 
 

C. INVITATION TO SPEAK PROTOCOL 

 
D. MINUTES 

June 26, 2018 – Public Work Session 

June 26, 2018 – Regular Board Meeting 
 

E. TREASURER'S REPORT 

 
 Consideration of Claims 

 

 Appointment of Treasurer and Deputy Treasurer – Kevin Scott began July 1, 
2016 as Treasurer and Erica Purvis as Deputy Treasurer since August 15, 
2016. 

 
 Extra Curricular Purchases - The Business Office seeks Board approval of 

extra-curricular purchase requests. 

 
 Fundraisers - The Business Office recommends Board approval of proposed 

school fundraisers in accordance with Board Policy. 

 
F. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 

 Board Policy 5460.1 – Commencement Exercise – The administration 

presents proposed revisions to Board Policy 5460.01 – Commencement 
Exercises, with suggested revisions from the July 10th regular meeting. 



BOARD AGENDA July 10, 2018 
 
 

2 
   

G. NEW BUSINESS 
 

 Administrator Conflict of Interest – Elkhart Community School’s 
administrators disclose potential conflict of interest statements. 
 

H. PERSONNEL 
 

 Conference Leaves - It is recommended the Board grant conference leave 

requests in accordance with Board Policy to staff members as recommended 
by the administration. 
 

 Certified and Classified Staff - See the report and recommendations of the 

administration. 
 

I. INFORMATION AND PROPOSALS 
 

 From Audience 
 

 From Superintendent and Staff 
 

 From Board 
 

J. ADJOURNMENT 
 



MINUTES OF THE 
PUBLIC WORK SESSION 

OF THE 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

 
June 26, 2018 

 

J.C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Road, Elkhart – at 
5:30 p.m. 
 

Place/Time 

Board Members Karen S. Carter Susan C. Daiber 

Present: Douglas K. Weaver Rodney J. Dale 

 Jeri E. Stahr Glenn L. Duncan 

   

Absent:  Carolyn R. Morris 

   

ECS Personnel    

Present: Tony England Kevin Scott 

 Rob Haworth Doug Thorne 
 Dawn McGrath Tara White 
 Nicole Scheetz  
   
   

 

Roll Call 

The Board discussed agenda items for the regular Board meeting including 
food service bids and recommended revisions to policy. 
 

Topics 
Discussed 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 5:50 p.m. 
 

Adjournment 

APPROVED: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Karen S. Carter, President 
 
 
____________________________ 
Douglas K. Weaver, Vice President 
 
 
____________________________ 
Jeri E. Stahr, Secretary 

 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Susan C. Daiber, Member 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Rodney J. Dale, Member 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Glenn L. Duncan, Member 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Carolyn R. Morris, Member 

 

 
 

Signatures 

 



MINUTES 
OF THE REGULAR MEETING 

OF THE BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 
June 26, 2018 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Road, Elkhart – at 

7:00 p.m. 
 

Place/Time 

Board Members Karen S. Carter Susan C. Daiber 
Present: Douglas K. Weaver Rodney J. Dale 

 Jeri E. Stahr Glenn L. Duncan 
  Carolyn R. Morris 
   

 

Roll Call 

President Karen Carter called the regular meeting of the Board of School 
Trustees to order.  The pledge of allegiance was recited. 
 

Call to 
Order 

Assistant director of human resources, Maggie Lozano, recited the 
Elkhart Promise. 
 

The Elkhart 
Promise 

Mrs. Carter discussed the invitation to speak protocol. 
 

 

By unanimous action, the Board accepted with appreciation the following 

donations made to Elkhart Community Schools (ECS): $500 from Boling 
Vision Center to Memorial’s volleyball program; $80 from the National 
Energy Foundation to Woodland; and $50 from David and Carol Steede, 

and $30 from Central High School staff in memory of Carol Lynn Meyers 
to be used in the speech and hearing departments. 
 

Gift Acceptance 

Rob Roberson, director of co-curricular programming, presented James 
Rieckhoff with a thank you gift consisting of the two high schools’ letters 

for his dedication to the naming committee. 
 

Special 
Recognition 

 

Tessa Sutton, supervisor of connective leadership & inclusion, presented 

Mayor Tim Neese with an award in the shape of a heart, for the city’s 
ongoing participation in the Culture Series.  Each year the program has 
been able to use the Lerner Theatre for the keynote speakers. 

 

Special 

Recognition 
 

Ms. Lozano recognized the following classified retirees: Lydia Benedict, 
Carol Black, Cherie Books, Frances Chumas, Heidi Compton, Carlene 

Duncan, Diane Duncan, Diane Evans, Richard Gorsuch, Mary Holsopple, 
Mary Keenoy, James Kintigh, Vicki Klabusich, Diane Knowlton, Darci 
Koch, Rhonda Landgraf, Alan McMillan, Sarah Miles, Janet Newton, 

Deborah Shoup, Sheryl Torok, and Richard Wright.  A reception was held 
in their honor prior to the Board meeting. 
 

 

Special 
Recognition 

 



2 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the following minutes:  
June 12, 2018 – Public Work Session 

June 12, 2018 – Regular Board Meeting 
June 19, 2018 – Public Work Session 
 

Approval of 
Minutes 

By unanimous action, the Board approved payment of claims totaling 
$6,434,946.52 as shown on the June 26, 2018, claims listing.  (Codified 
File 1718-154) 

 

Payment of 
Claims 

The Board received a financial report from Kevin Scott, chief financial 
officer, for the period January 1 – May 31, 2018. 

 

Financial 
Report 

Mr. Scott reported the following fund loans were made on 5/31/18: 
$229,000 from Fund 0420 Bus Replacement to Fund 0350 Capital 

Projects Fund; and $84,000 from Fund 0420 Bus Replacement to Fund 
0160 Referendum Tax Levy Fund. 
 

Fund Loans 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the purchase request from 
West Side Middle School for the license for the production of ‘Alice in 
Wonderland’ in the amount of $988.45 and to purchase PRIDE t-shirts in 

the amount of $2,902.00. 
 

Extra-Curricular 
Purchase 
Requests 

 

By unanimous action, the Board approved proposed school fundraisers 
in accordance with Board policy.  The funds raised through the listed 
activities are deposited into each school’s extra-curricular fund. (Codified 

File 1718-155) 
 

Fundraisers 

Mr. Scott provided the monthly insurance update.   Insurance 

Update 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved food service bids with a grand 
total of all bids being $3,624,697.63 to the lowest, most responsive and 

responsible bidders: food bids to Gordon Food Service, Stanz Food 
Service and Commercial Foods; commodity bids to Gordon Food Service 
and Stanz Food Service; fresh produce to Gordon Food Service and 

Piazza Produce; supply bids to Gordon Food Service, Stanz Food Service, 
Wallace Packing, Daxwell and Commercial Foods; bakery bids to Alpha 
Bakers, Gordon Food Service and Stanz Food Service; and dairy bids to 

Dean Foods.   
 

Board member, Doug Weaver, requested a clarification on the 
misinformation presented by audience members at the previous meeting 
regarding food quantities available for lunches.  Tony Gianesi, chief 

operating officer, noted on occasion a particularly popular item may run 
out but they have never run out of lunch options. (Codified File 1718-
156) 

 

Food Service 
Bids 

  



3 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved Board Policy 5830 – Student 
Fundraising, with noted revisions from the May 22nd and June 12th regular 

meetings.  Doug Thorne, district counsel/chief of staff, clarified the 
revisions were based on Indiana Code 4-32.2-5-20 pertaining to charity 
gaming events authorized under Indiana law. 

 

Board Policy 
5830 

 

The Board reviewed Administrative Regulation KI – Application for 
Fundraiser Approval, as presented at the May 22nd and June 12th regular 

meetings. 

Administrative 
Regulation KI 

Form 
 

The Board was presented new Board Policy 5460.1 – Commencement 

Exercise for initial consideration. 

Board Policy 

5460.1 
 

The Board was presented proposed revisions to Administrative 

Regulation JFCA – Guidelines for Secondary School Athletes, for initial 
consideration.  Mr. Thorne stated the regulation would be revised for the 
next Board meeting to encompass students participating in programs 

not using block scheduling. 
 

Administrative 

Regulation 
JFCA 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved submission of a Security 

Grant to the Indiana Department of Education for $25,000 from the 
District; a Carl D. Perkins Grant to the Department of Workforce 

Development for $742,625 from the EACC; and a Title I Part A Grant to 
the DOE for $3,777,478.73 from the following Title I schools:  
Beardsley, Beck, Daly, Hawthorne, Monger, Osolo, Riverview, Roosevelt, 

Woodland and Pierre Moran.  (Codified File 1718-157) 
 

Grants 

By unanimous action, the Board approved conference leave requests in 

accordance with Board policy for staff members as recommended by the 
administration on the June 26, 2018 listings. (Codified File 1718-158) 
 

Conference 

Leaves 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the following personnel 
recommendations of the administration: 
 

Personnel 
Report 

Administrative appointments of the following four (4) certified 
staff members effective 8/1/18:  

Kevin Beveridge - assistant principal at West Side 

Eric Chandler - principal at Hawthorne 
Melinda Ehmer - principal at Eastwood 
Mary Teeter – assistant principal instructional supervisor at 

Cleveland/Roosevelt 
 

Administrative 
Appointments 

Administrative appointment of certified staff member, Matthew 

Werbiansky, supervisor of corporate and community partnerships 
at EACC effective 7/1/18. 
 

 

Retirement of the following two (2) certified staff members with 
years of service in parenthesis: 

Carrie Drews, social studies at Central (18) 

Jennifer Hinman - assistant principal at Bristol (22) 

Certified 
Retirement 
 



4 
 

Employment of the following ten (10) certified staff members for 
the 2018-2019 school year:  

Timothy Adams - counselor at Pierre Moran 
Elizabeth DeMeester - grade 3 at Hawthorne 
Amber Hammontree - kindergarten at Woodland 

Brett Hertschel - grade 6 at Cleveland 
Kyle Lesniewicz - language arts at Central 
Alexandra Lyon - social studies at West Side 

Brittany Matheison - grade 4 at Riverview 
Allysa Romano - grade 1 at Riverview 
Barry Singrey - physical education at Central 

Serena Utterback - grade 3 at Roosevelt 
 

Certified 
Employment 

 

Resignation of the following six (6) certified staff members effective 

on dates indicated: 
Bodie Bender - physical education at Central, 6/8/18 
Sarah Bertsch - science at Central, 6/8/18 

Julie Kelly - grade 5 at Woodland, 6/14/18 
Tina Northern – director, special education at ESC, 6/30/18 
Laura Unsicker - science at North Side, 6/8/18 

Paul Walker - business education at North Side6/8/18 
 

Certified 

Resignation 
 

Parental leave for certified staff member, Heather Bechtel, 
grade 3 at Woodland, beginning 8/14/18 and ending 6/5/19. 
 

Parental Leave 

Professional leave for certified staff member, Shawn Hannon, 
assistant superintendent communication/data, beginning 
7/1/18 and ending 6/30/19. 

 

Parental Leave 

Employment of classified employee, Matt Washington, Jr., 
paraprofessional at Tipton who have successfully completed his 

probationary period 6/12/18. 
 

Classified 
Employment 

 

Retirement of Lydia Benedict, bus driver at Transportation with 18 
years of service. 
 

 

Resignation of the following five (5) classified employees 
effective on the dates indicated: 

Deborah Douglas - registered nurse at Pierre Moran, 6/11/18 
Amber Hammontree, permanent substitute teacher at 

Woodland, 6/8/18 

Heide Schuller, registered nurse at Feeser, 6/11/18 
Mary Szekendi - paraprofessional at Osolo, 6/8/18 
Robert Vo – technician I at Tech Services, 7/13/18 

 

Classified 
Resignation 

 

Termination of the following two (2) classified employees in 
accordance with Board Policy as indicated: effective 6/12/18: 

Lisa Canfield – paraprofessional at Feeser, 3039.01s a,f,g 
Olivia Cox, bus helper at Transportation, 3039.01s a,b,c,e,g 
 

Classified 
Termination 

 



5 
 

Revision of classified administrative appointment date reported 
on 6/12/18 from 7/1/17 to effective 7/1/18. 

 

Revision 

Board member, Doug Weaver, wished Dr. Haworth well on his new 
position. 

 

From the Board 

Board member, Susan Daiber, commented on all of the student 
participation at the recent jazz festival. 

 

 

Board member, Doug Weaver, suggested participation in the upcoming 
flotilla. 

 

From the Board 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 8:15 p.m. 
 

Adjournment 

APPROVED: 
 
  ____________________________________ 

  Karen S. Carter, President 
 
 

  ____________________________________ 
  Douglas K. Weaver, Vice President 

 
 
  ____________________________________ 

  Jeri E. Stahr, Secretary 
 
 

____________________________________ 
  Susan C. Daiber, Member 
 

 
____________________________________ 

  Rodney J. Dale, Member 

 
 

____________________________________ 

  Glenn L. Duncan, Member 
 
 

  _____________________  ______________ 
  Carolyn R. Morris, Member 

Signatures 

 















policy 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES STUDENTS 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed New 5460.01/page 1 of 1 

(as presented during the 6/26/18 BST meeting) 

 
COMMENCEMENT EXERCISES 

 
 

Commencement exercises will be held as a culmination of a student's academic 
achievements.  Participation in commencement exercises is optional. Any 
student who has indicated a desire to take part may do so provided the student 

is within two (2) credits of meeting the general requirements set forth in 
applicable Board Policies and Administrative Regulations and is enrolled in the 
summer session courses necessary to complete those requirements. 

 
A student will be eligible to participate in only one commencement exercise.  

When a student does not qualify to participate as described above, the student 
may participate in the commencement which immediately follows the 
completion of the requirements for a diploma. 

 
Students who do not participate in commencement are to make arrangements 

with the individual school to receive diplomas, certificates of completion or 
certificates of attendance at a later time. 
 

An exception to participation in commencement exercises will be made for 
Foreign Exchange students.  Foreign Exchange students who have attended 
Elkhart Community Schools but have not completed graduation requirements 

may participate in commencement exercises and be presented with an 
appropriate certificate. 

 
A building principal may, with good cause, deny participation in 
commencement exercises; however, such denial may be subject to review by 

the Superintendent/designee. 
 
 

 
 

 
July 10, 2018 
 

















































 

INTERNAL MEMO 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

2720 California Road • Elkhart, IN 46514 

 

 

 

 

To:   Mr. Mark Mow 

From:  Ms. Cheryl Waggoner 

Date:  July 10, 2018 

 

Personnel Recommendations 

 

 

CERTIFIED 

 

a. Administrative Appointment – The administration recommends the confirmation of the following 

administrative appointment effective August 1, 2018: 

 

Tervonda Goins Principal/Pinewood 

 

 

b. New Certified Staff – We recommend the following new certified staff for employment in the 

2018-19  school year: 

 

 

Marissa Batt  North Side/Social Studies 

 

Landon Grove  North Side/Social Studies 

 

Stephanie Hubler Hawthorne/Grace 6 

 

Amanda Irons  Hawthorne/Grade 5   

 

Angela Irwin  Woodland/Grade 3 

 

Judit Kovacs  West Side/Math 

 

Mary Krieger  Pinewood/Kindergarten   

 

Amy Szakaly  Monger/Academic Dean 

 

 

 

c. Resignation – We report the resignation of the following employees: 

 

Stephanie Boggs  Daly/Grade 4 

Began:  8/8/16   Resign:  6/26/18 

 

Whitney Goeglein  Memorial/Art 

Began:  8/11/08   Resign:  6/26/18 



 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

Tara Schuster   Osolo/Grade 4 

Began:  8/2/16   Resign:  6/26/18 

 

 

 

 

d. Maternity Leave – We recommend a maternity leave for the following employee: 

 

Izamar Garcia   Pierre Moran/ENL 

Begin:  8/14/18   End:  12/21/18 

 

 

 

 
 
CLASSIFIED 

 

a. Resignation – We report the resignation of the following employee: 

 

Parnell Jones Jr.  Building Services/Custodian 

Began: 4/20/15   End: 6//22/18  
 


	Agenda
	Minutes - Public Work Session June 26 2018
	Minutes - Regular Meeting June 26 2018
	Extra Curricular Requests
	Fundraiser Requests
	Board Policy 5460.01
	Conflict of Interest - Administrators
	Conference Leave Requests
	Personnel Report

